#### MEMBERS PRESENT

Jennifer Doll Natalie Genet Terri Masich Heather McMullen Leon Ricks

#### ALSO PRESENT

Ann Hutchison, Bedel, Director Ken Cornelius, Fiscal Officer Melissa Futrell, Deputy Fiscal Officer William Swigart, Facilities Services Manager Lynn Swigart

### MEMBERS EXCUSED

C. Racyne Leskanic Christopher White

President Masich called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.

Cornelius introduced Facilities Services Manager W. Swigart to the Board. Swigart expressed that he enjoys working at BPL, and thanked the Board for the opportunity.

Genet reported that the Friends of the Library had a balance of approximately \$13,000.00 before the spring book sale, which earned \$1,144.00. Masich attended the April 17 FOL meeting to request a donation for the library's Political Action Committee, which was approved. On May 3, the FOL will hold their first annual children's book sale. The Friends are interested in applying for a grant from Better World Books to enhance the collections contained in their Little Free Libraries, and Hutchison is investigating the precedent for Friends groups applying for grants.

Ricks entered the meeting at 6:35 p.m.

**Moved** by Doll, seconded by McMullen **to accept the minutes** of the March 2019 regular meeting. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen and Ricks. Nays: None. Motion carried.

#### LIBRARIAN'S REPORT

<u>Circulation</u>: Circulation for March 2019 showed increases in every format, and is up 19% from March 2019. The largest area of growth over last year is eMedia, which increased 31.5%. Hutchison has researched how reference questions are being counted in other libraries, and believes that BPL has been undercounting. In the coming months, the Board should notice an increase in reported patron interactions.

Hutchison plans to form a focus group of staff members to work on ideas for increasing circulation and program attendance.

Customer holds have been moved from a public area in the lobby to the Customer Service Desk to increase efficiency within the department, which has created additional space for displays to promote the collection and upcoming programs.

Hutchison noted that there was a problem with the Wi-Fi statistics from January, which resulted in a much lower number than what is accurate. Hutchison estimates that the use was approximately 4,000, rather than the 948 that was reported. Hutchison will make a notation when reporting the yearly statistics to the State Library.

**Programs & Publicity**: The March 2019 publicity packet was distributed for review. Hutchison shared some of BPL's upcoming programs of note. Summer Reading Club for all ages begins June 3. New display space in the lobby is being utilized to promote two upcoming local author visits.

#### **Donations:**

Barberton NAACP - \$10 Pam Barnes – 26 books Jerry & Mary Fox – Assorted newspapers, to LH Friends of Barberton Public Library - \$50 in memory of Mary Lou Sutton Dave & Sherry Kapes – Two Barberton soda ash juice glasses Linda Moyers - \$100 Carol Perrine – 17 books, 7 magazines Robert Shaw - \$9 Karen Stadler – Babcock & Wilcox photographs, c.1950 Anonymous – 578 books, 1CD-ROM, 23 DVDs, 15 magazines

**Moved** by McMullen, seconded by Ricks **to accept the donations**. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen, and Ricks. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Other: Hutchison and Cornelius presented the drafted revision of BPL's Credit Card Policy.

**RESOLUTION 8-2019** Moved by Ricks, seconded by Genet to accept the revised Credit Card Policy. See pages 2351-2354. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen and Ricks. Nays: None. Resolution adopted.

Mr. and Mrs. Swigart left the meeting at 7:03 p.m.

Hutchison presented the Board with a list of donation suggestions for the Friends of the Library. Cornelius stated that the majority of the items are things that the library plans to purchase in the future, regardless of what the Friends choose to support. Masich requested that the following list be presented to the FOL as soon as possible:

Literature/magazine racks - \$500 Furniture for Children's - \$2,500 Speaker system for meeting room - \$1,000 Lightweight tables for meeting room - \$1,000 Silhouette Cameo & accessories - \$500 Teen Room equipment - \$2,000 Playaway Launchpad collection - \$3,000 Button/magnet maker - \$600 Chair yoga program - \$400 Flagpole - \$500 Outside LED sign - \$15,000-\$19,000 Solar Panels - cost unknown

### FISCAL OFFICER'S REPORT

The Public Library Fund tax distribution for the month of April for the Barberton Public Library was \$60,557.59.

Moved by Doll, seconded by Ricks to accept the financial report, bank reconciliations and bills paid for the month of March 2019. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen and Ricks. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Cornelius has not yet received the results the audit performed on April 5, but anticipates that they will be positive. The audit only took an hour and a half, and the auditors were impressed with the organization of the financial records that they requested.

Cornelius reviewed materials from the Barberton Community foundation regarding the library's Endowment Fund. In the past, BCF allowed for annual disbursements of 4.5%, but their policy has changed to allow fund holders the option of a fixed amount or different percentage. The Board requested more information before taking action.

**RESOLUTION 9-2019** Moved by Ricks, seconded by Doll to disburse \$412.15, the entire amount available from the Barberton Public Library Endowment Forever Fund, for distribution to the Barberton Public Library. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen and Ricks. Nays: None. Resolution adopted.

**RESOLUTION 10-2019** Moved by Ricks, seconded by Genet to disburse \$287.49, the entire amount available from the Barberton Public Library Endowment Now Fund, for distribution to the Barberton Public Library. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen and Ricks. Nays: None. Resolution adopted.

#### **COMMITTEE REPORTS**

Building and Equipment Committee: No meeting held.

Finance and Audit Committee: No meeting held.

Personnel Committee: No meeting held.

**Moved** by McMullen, seconded by Ricks, **to accept the resignation of Jaycee Lappin**, effective April 12, 2019. Ayes: Doll, Genet, McMullen and Ricks. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Summit County Library Trustees Council: No meeting held.

#### COMMUNICATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE

**OLC Legislative Update**: Hutchison attended OLC's Legislative Day in Columbus on Tuesday, April 9, along with 275 other Library Directors, Trustees and Friends. Doll, Genet, McMullen, Ricks and Hutchison are registered to attend OLC's Trustee Dinner on Thursday, April 25 at 6:00 p.m. at the Holiday Inn in Independence. Board members who wish to ride with Hutchison should plan meet at BPL at 5:00 p.m. Hutchison is attending a Ballot Issues workshop in Columbus on May 23, and would like a Trustee to accompany her if possible.

#### **OLD BUSINESS** - None

### NEW BUSINESS

Hutchison invited the Board to join BPL staff in the Cherry Blossom Parade on Saturday, May 18 at 9:00 a.m.

Moved by Doll, seconded by Genet to adjourn the meeting at 7:33 p.m.

Terri Masich, President

Jennifer Doll, Secretary

### Barberton Public Library Credit Card Policy

- 1. This policy applies to all (i) payment cards, checks or other payment instruments associated with a credit account issued by a financial institution or a retailer, and (ii) payment cards related to the receipt of grant funds. All such cards and instruments are referred to herein as "credit cards".
- 2. This policy does not apply to procurement cards (P-cards), or to gas cards or other payment cards that are capable of use only for the purchase of certain limited types of goods.
- 3. The Library will not obtain or maintain any debit cards. Credit/purchase cards may not be used for cash transactions such as advances and or ATM activity.
- 4. Credit cards will be established in the name of the Barberton Public Library with a maximum credit limit not to exceed \$18,000.
- 5. The Fiscal Officer will work with the appropriate financial institutions that issue credit cards to determine the best type of credit card accounts for the Library, and also to determine which store credit card accounts the Library will utilize.
  - a. The Fiscal Officer is responsible for working with the issuing financial institution to determine the dates when credit cards expire and the re-issuance of replacement cards.
  - b. The Fiscal Officer is responsible for determining, when necessary, the need to cancel a credit card account and any adjustment to credit limits on the credit cards.
  - c. The Fiscal Officer is responsible for notifying the issuing financial institution of a lost or stolen card. Library personnel using a credit card must notify the Fiscal Officer when they become aware that a card is lost or stolen.
- 6. Credit cards will be kept in the office of the Fiscal Officer and may be signed out to authorized Library personnel from time to time as necessary. The credit card should be promptly returned to the office of the Fiscal Officer once the purchases for which it was checked out have been made.
- 7. Credit cards may be signed out only to the following Library personnel:
  - a. Director with a credit limit up to \$5,000
  - b. Fiscal Officer with a credit limit up to \$3,000
  - c. Deputy Fiscal Officer with a credit limit up to \$500
  - d. Children's Services Manager with a credit limit up to \$500
  - e. Facilities Services Manager with a credit limit up to \$2,000
  - f. Reference Services Manager with a credit limit up to \$500
  - g. Technical Services Manager with a credit limit up to \$5,000
  - h. Librarians with a credit limit up to \$500
- 8. A credit card may not be used by anyone other than the individual to whom it is signed out.
- 9. Prior to initial receipt of a credit card, each individual must agree to and sign the Credit Card Responsibility and Use Procedures.

- 10. The Board authorizes the use of Library credit cards for use in connection with Board- approved or Libraryrelated activities and for only those types of expenses that are for the benefit of the Library that serve a valid and proper public purpose shall be paid for by credit card. Credit cards will be used primarily for travel expenses to conferences and/or workshops and pre-payment of materials when required by a vendor. In any event, credit cards may be used only for expenditures that are within the applicable budget and departmental guidelines.
- 11. For each purchase made using a credit card, an itemized receipt indicating the date purchased, amount paid, the vendor name and address, and the goods/services purchased must be submitted to the Fiscal Officer the next working day following the purchase.
- 12. Use of a credit card for personal expenditures, for expenditures in excess of the applicable credit limit, or otherwise in violation of this policy constitutes a misuse of the credit card. Any Library personnel engaging in misuse of a credit card will be responsible to reimburse the Library for any unauthorized expenditures and may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.
- 13. If a credit card is lost or stolen, or if any Library personnel becomes aware of unauthorized or fraudulent use of any of the Library's credit card accounts, the same must be reported immediately to the Fiscal Officer.
- 14. All monthly credit card statements and other correspondence associated with the credit card accounts will be sent to the Barberton Public Library. Payment of the monthly statements must be made in a timely fashion so that finance charges and late payment fees are not incurred.
- 15. Cards must be surrendered to the Library upon request by the Director or Fiscal Officer.
- 16. Cards must be promptly returned to the Director or Fiscal Officer at the time and employee separates service.
- 17. On an annual basis, the Fiscal Officer will submit a report to the Library Board of Trustees regarding all credit card rewards received by the Library.

All library policies have been designed to maximize available resources and ensure accessibility. They are always subject to review and revision by the Board of Trustees as necessary.

Adopted by the Board of Trustees, July 23, 2009, Resolution #25-2009. Amended April 18, 2019.

## **Credit Card Responsibility and Use Procedures**

A credit card account has been established to meet the needs of your department for incidental purchases. Upon receipt of proper documentation and itemized receipt, credit card expenditures will be paid through the Fiscal Officer's office.

### \*\*\*A credit card does not replace requisitions and purchase orders.

Conditions of Use. Expenses may be incurred with the credit card only if <u>all</u> of the following conditions are met:

- 1. A requisition form is to be completed *before* a purchase is made with all necessary information including:
  - Date of anticipated transaction
  - Location of purchase (vendor will be the bank) with actual purchase location notes, i.e. Huntington/Amazon
  - Line item account to be used
  - Item/Service being purchased with justification listed
  - Total amount of purchase, including shipping (not to include sales tax)
  - A tax exempt form can be obtained from the Fiscal Officer
- 2. You will be notified by the Fiscal Officer, Deputy Fiscal Officer or Director of the requisition approval.
- 3. Expenditures must be within the guidelines of the particular activity of your department and budget. The expenditure can only be made after the approval of the required requisition and a signed purchase order from the Fiscal Officer. The credit card is not to be used for any personal expenses.
- 4. Expenditures to be paid must be less than your credit limit of \$\_\_\_\_. There are <u>no exceptions</u>.
- 5. Proper documentation to support the expenditure must be sent to the Fiscal Officer the day after receipt.
  - a. Proper documentation is to include:
    - i. Itemized paid receipt indicating the date, amount paid, the vendor name and address, and an itemized description of the purchase.
    - ii. In the case of books, subscriptions or similar types of orders, a copy of the order form or document, and the packing slip or other receiving document.
    - iii. A hardcopy print-out for any items ordered online.
  - b. Examples of documentation not allowed:
    - i. Non-itemized cash register receipts.
    - ii. Handwritten requests for reimbursement without receipts or other verification.
- 6. The Library is exempt from sales tax, and all reasonable efforts should be made to ensure that sales tax is not charged by vendors in connection with purchases made via credit card. A tax exemption certificate is available in the Fiscal Officer's office. In some cases, if you merely mention to the vendor that the purchase is tax exempt, no sales tax will be charged. Taxes incurred will be paid by the credit card user.
- 7. Cards must be surrendered to the Library upon request by the Director or Fiscal Officer.
- 8. Cards must be promptly returned to the Director of Fiscal Officer at the time an employee separates service.

<u>Safekeeping</u>. You are responsible for the safekeeping of the credit card. You shall not permit anyone else to use the credit card or disclose to anyone (other than the vendor/merchant in connection with a purchase) the card account number, CVV, or other pertinent account information. You shall promptly return the credit card to the office of the Fiscal Officer once the purchases for which it was checked out have been made.

<u>Unauthorized Use</u>. If you become aware of any unauthorized or fraudulent use of the credit card, or if the credit card is lost or stolen, you must immediately report same to the Fiscal Officer.

<u>No Right to Credit Card</u>. The credit card is issued to you on a temporary basis, and remains the sole property of the financial institution from which it was issued. The right to use the credit card may be revoked at any time without notice by the issuing financial institution or by the Library's Fiscal Officer or Director.

<u>Personal Responsibility</u>. You are personally responsible for any unauthorized credit card expenditures and expenditures made in violation of applicable Library policy.

Policy. In addition to the terms set out herein, use of the credit card is subject to the Library's Credit Card Policy.

I have read and fully understand and accept my personal responsibilities and liabilities in regard to the credit card issued to me, including the terms set out in the Library's Credit Card Policy. I further acknowledge that any misuse of the credit card will result in reimbursement and disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

| Cardholder Signature: | Date: |  |
|-----------------------|-------|--|
|                       |       |  |
|                       |       |  |

Witness: Date: